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The Daniel Tflden house Is a large, two-story, wood-frame residence 
constructed In the Victorian eclectic style popular throughout the country In 
the latter part of the nineteenth century. The original portion of the house, 
constructed In 1872, consists of a cruciform plan which Is echoed In the 
cross-gable roof. The existing kitchen was added to the northeast corner of 
the original structure In 1888; this single-story addition has a modified 
gambrel roof. In the 1950s a garage was added to the north of the kitchen 
addition; the garage has a gable roof with two dormers on both the east and 
west elevations. A screened-In porch was added to the southeast corner of the 
building, probably at the same time that the garage was constructed. There Is 
a full basement under the entire structure, except for the garage.

The roof of the house Is slate. The original portion of the building features 
a subtle Imbrication of alternating rows of rectangular and hexagonal slates; 
this decorative pattern of roof slates Is repeated In the 1888 addition. 
Asphalt shingles cover the roof of the garage. The exterior of the entire 
structure Is covered with horizontal coved shfplap siding. The foundations of 
the house are large blocks of coursed sandstone; the garage foundation Is 
concrete.

The windows on the body of the original structure feature highly decorative 
pedlmented window hoods which Include Incised scrollwork. Similar window 
treatment Is also found In the 1888 addition; this ornamentation may very well 
have been re-used from the windows on the original building which were 
obscured by this addition. These windows are equipped with louvered shutters. 
The south, east, and west gable ends are sheathed In vertical boards at the 
attic level and contain a pointed arch window at that level. These three 
gables are trimmed with wide bargeboard with Incised scrollwork, the overall 
form of which frames and echoes the pointed arch attic window. This 
bargeboard Includes exposed stick work and drilled brackets. The south gable 
contains a two-story bay which Is terminated at the roof line with exposed 
diagonal stick work and panels of Incised scrollwork. The north gable, which 
faces away from the main road, has no ornamentation or fenestratlon.

With the exception of the additions mentioned above, the Interior plan 
configuration has not been altered. Each doorway and window Is framed In an 
elaborate casing of decorative white oak. The wood Is purported to have been 
cut from the site, sawn In Cleveland, and then carved back on the site. The 
bases of many of these massive casings feature hand-carved and wood-burned 
depictions of natural scenes (birds, flowers, etc.) no two of which are 
Identical. Much of the original door and window hardware also remains 
throughout the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Daniel Tilden house is architecturally significant because it is a rare surviving 
example of Victorian eclectic architecture. Although the general style of the building 
was fairly common in the area in the 1870s, the high quality and level of the interior 
detailing is exceptional. The fact that the house has remained largely unaltered and 
that the interior and its outstanding woodwork and hardware have not been changed truly 
distinguish this structure from others of its genre.

Daniel Tilden was born in 1790. In 1832, he married Nancy Mather who, in 1836, gave birth 
to their only child to live to maturity, Daniel W. Tilden. By 1860, Daniel Tilden had 
acquired the 245 acres of land in Boston Township where he would later build this house 
and operate a successful dairy farm and cheese business. In 1873, this cheese business 
was named the Boston Union Cheese Company. With the death of his father in 1881, Daniel 
W. Tilden inherited this property and the cheese business, which he sold the next year 
to the Cassidy and McNeil Cheese Company.

Apparently, operation of this dairy farm and cheese business was quite profitable for the 
Tildens. In part, this success is reflected in the outstanding architectural qualities 
of their house. There were several dairy farms in the Cuyahoga Valley during the latter 
half of the nineteenth century, many of which remain to this day. Few, if any, however, 
were built with the same regard to design, attention to detail, or quality of craftsman­ 
ship as was the Daniel Tilden house. The area farmhouses of that period were simpler 
structures, which lacked the high quality of materials, degree of ornamentation, and 
overall design found in the subject property. Thus far, no other structures have been 
identified in the Cuyahoga Valley which share the significance of the architectural 
execution of the Daniel Tilden house.
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